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PART I
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.

PDF SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

         
  September 30,  December 31,

  
2004

 
2003

ASSETS         
Current assets:         

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 42,939  $ 39,110 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $254 in 2004 and $504 in 2003   15,468   11,869 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   2,653   2,614 
Deferred tax assets   1,433   1,808 

Total current assets   62,493   55,401 
Property and equipment, net   3,444   4,110 
Goodwill   40,590   40,548 
Intangible assets, net   17,292   22,906 
Other assets   798   1,002 

Total assets  $ 124,617  $ 123,967 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY         

Current liabilities:         
Accounts payable  $ 1,594  $ 835 
Accrued compensation and related benefits   2,970   1,952 
Other accrued liabilities   2,310   1,485 
Other acquisition obligations   552   1,880 
Taxes payable   3,285   2,871 
Deferred revenue   3,346   3,300 
Billings in excess of recognized revenue   2,807   465 

Total current liabilities   16,864   12,788 
Long-term liabilities   310   287 
Deferred tax liabilities   2,584   4,340 

Total liabilities   19,758   17,415 
Stockholders’ equity:         

Preferred stock, $0.00015 par value per share, 5,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding in
2004 and 2003   —   — 

Common stock, $0.00015 par value per share, 75,000 shares authorized: shares issued and outstanding
25,296 in 2004 and 25,432 in 2003   4   4 

Additional paid-in-capital   131,910   129,568 
Treasury stock at cost, 506 shares in 2004 and none in 2003   (4,806)   — 
Deferred stock-based compensation   (209)   (688)
Notes receivable from stockholders   (550)   (3,025)
Accumulated deficit   (21,530)   (19,361)
Accumulated other comprehensive income   40   54 

Total stockholders’ equity   104,859   106,552 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 124,617  $ 123,967 

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements
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PDF SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

                 

  
Three Months Ended

 
Nine Months Ended

  September 30,  September 30,  September 30,  September 30,

  
2004

 
2003

 
2004

 
2003

Revenue:                 
Design-to-silicon-yield solutions  $ 14,036  $ 9,033  $ 39,244  $ 25,175 
Gain share   2,414   2,267   5,051   5,282 

Total revenue   16,450   11,300   44,295   30,457 
Cost and expenses:                 

Cost of design-to-silicon-yield solutions:                 
Direct costs of design-to-silicon-yield solutions   5,887   3,768   15,610   10,726 
Amortization of acquired core technology   1,266   652   3,943   818 

Research and development   4,940   4,421   14,980   13,123 
Selling, general and administrative   3,801   3,106   11,220   8,720 
Stock-based compensation amortization*   134   366   681   1,344 
Amortization of other acquired intangible assets   351   137   1,171   137 
Write-off of in-process research and development   —   800   —   800 

Total costs and expenses   16,379   13,250   47,605   35,668 
Income (loss) from operations   71   (1,950)   (3,310)   (5,211)
Interest and other income   150   278   441   998 
Income (loss) before taxes   221   (1,672)   (2,869)   (4,213)
Tax provision (benefit)   86   (441)   (702)   (972)
Net income (loss)  $ 135  $ (1,231)  $ (2,167)  $ (3,241)
Net income (loss) per share:                 

Basic  $ 0.01  $ (0.05)  $ (0.09)  $ (0.14)
Diluted  $ 0.01  $ (0.05)  $ (0.09)  $ (0.14)

Weighted average common shares:                 
Basic   25,293   23,002   25,310   22,701 
Diluted   25,983   23,002   25,310   22,701 

* Stock-based compensation amortization:                 
  Cost of design-to-silicon yield solutions  $ 2  $ 77  $ 39  $ 293 
  Research and development   130   222   606   785 
  Selling, general and administrative   2   67   36   266 
  $ 134  $ 366  $ 681  $ 1,344 

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements
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PDF SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
(In thousands)

         

  
Nine Months Ended

  September 30,  September 30,

  
2004

 
2003

Operating activities:         
Net loss  $ (2,167)  $ (3,241)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:         

Depreciation and amortization   1,905   1,520 
Stock-based compensation   681   1,344 
Amortization of acquired intangible assets   5,114   955 
Write-off of in-process research and development   —   800 
Deferred taxes   (1,381)   (2,271)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         

Accounts receivable   (3,599)   (1,236)
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets   165   (902)
Accounts payable   759   632 
Accrued compensation and related benefits   1,018   1,095 
Accrued liabilities   16   (573)
Deferred revenue   46   (3,216)
Taxes payable   414   447 
Billings in excess of recognized revenue   2,342   (273)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   5,313   (4,919)
Investing activities:         

Purchases of property and equipment   (1,239)   (1,698)
Business acquired in purchase transaction, net of cash acquired   —   (20,520)

Net cash used in investing activities   (1,239)   (22,218)
Financing activities:         

Exercise of stock options   1,450   406 
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan   689   543 
Collection of notes receivable from stockholders   2,475   1,232 
Repurchase of common stock   (4,806)   — 
Principal payments on long-term obligations   (39)   (12)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   (231)   2,169 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents   (14)   45 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   3,829   (24,923)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   39,110   71,490 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 42,939  $ 46,567 
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information —         

Cash paid during the period for:         
Taxes  $ 267  $ 720 
Interest  $ 1  $ 2 

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements
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PDF SOLUTIONS, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

     The interim unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared by PDF Solutions, Inc. (the “Company”), without audit,
pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), specifically instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of
Regulation S-X. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been condensed or omitted. The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements
reflect, in the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary, (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) to present a fair statement of results for the
interim periods presented. The operating results for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for other interim
periods or the full fiscal year. The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2003.

     The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries after the elimination of all significant
intercompany balances and transactions. Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified to conform to current-year presentation.

Significant Estimates

     The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. A significant portion of the Company’s
revenues require estimates in regards to total costs which may be incurred and revenues earned because the Company uses the cost-to-cost percentage of
completion method of contract accounting. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation

     The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB No. 25”), and complies with the disclosure provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, (“SFAS No. 123”) as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
— Transition and Disclosures. Deferred compensation recognized under APB No. 25 is amortized to expense using the graded vesting method. The Company
accounts for stock options and warrants issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 and its related interpretations under the
fair value based method.

     The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, and accordingly, no expense has been recognized for options granted to
employees under the various stock plans. The Company amortizes deferred stock-based compensation on the graded vesting method over the vesting periods
of the applicable stock purchase rights and stock options, generally four years. The graded vesting method provides for vesting of portions of the overall
awards at interim dates and results in greater vesting in earlier years than the straight-line
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method. Had compensation expense been determined for employee awards based on the fair value at the grant date for the awards, consistent with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s pro forma net loss and pro forma net loss per share would be as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

                 
  Three Months  Nine Months

  
Ended September 30,

 
Ended September 30,

  
2004

 
2003

 
2004

 
2003

Net income (loss) as reported:  $ 135  $ (1,231)  $(2,167)  $ (3,241)
Add: stock-based employee compensation expense

included in reported net loss under APB No. 25   89   366   636   1,117 
Deduct: total employee stock-based compensation

determined under fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects   (2,264)   (3,140)   (4,959)   (8,036)

Pro forma net loss  $ (2,040)  $ (4,005)  $(6,490)  $(10,160)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:                 

As reported:                 
Basic and diluted  $ 0.01  $ (0.05)  $ (0.09)  $ (0.14)

Pro forma basic and diluted:                 
Basic and diluted  $ (0.08)  $ (0.17)  $ (0.26)  $ (0.45)

     During the three months ended September 30, 2004, the Company recorded $45,000 in compensation expense for the fair value of options granted to a
non-employee associated with 10,000 common shares granted under the 2001 Stock Plan. Such options were granted at an exercise price of $9.04 per share,
the fair market value on the grant date and were fully vested at the date of grant. Such options were valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following assumptions: contractual life of 2.5 years; risk-free interest rate of 4.14%; volatility of 80%; and no dividends during the expected term.
Additionally, during the nine months ended September 30, 2004 the Company recorded $157,000 of compensation associated with the acceleration of
vesting of certain options to a former employee of the Company. The compensation expense reflected the intrinsic value of such options at time of
acceleration.

     During the nine months ended September 30, 2003, the Company recognized $227,000 in compensation expense for the fair value of 45,000 options
granted to two non-employees. Such options were granted at an exercise price of $7.59 per share, the fair market value on the grant date, and were fully vested
at the date of grant and contained restrictions on when such shares could be sold. Such options were valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions: contractual life of 5 years; risk-free interest rate of 4.14%; volatility of 80%; and no dividends during the
expected term.
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2. ACQUISITIONS

IDS Software Systems

     On September 24, 2003, the Company completed its acquisition of IDS Software Systems, Inc. (“IDS”). IDS, a privately held company, that developed and
licensed yield management software applications and services dedicated to the semiconductor industry to enable customers to monitor manufacturing data
and identify areas for yield improvement. The acquisition of IDS provides the Company’s customers with greater capabilities for managing product yield
improvement through the use of the acquired technology and services. The aggregate purchase price was $51.0 million which included payments of cash of
$23.0 million, the issuance of 2.0 million shares of PDF common stock valued at $25.0 million, the assumption of vested stock options valued at $1.7 million
and acquisition costs of $1.3 million. In connection with the acquisition, $1.0 million in cash and 400,000 shares of common stock were withheld from the
purchase price and placed in escrow as security against certain financial contingencies. Cash held in escrow, less any amounts deducted to satisfy
contingencies, will be released no later than the 24-month anniversary following the completion of the acquisition. Fifty percent of the shares held in escrow
were released upon the 12-month anniversary of the acquisition and the remaining shares, less any amounts deducted to satisfy contingencies, shall be
released upon the 24-month anniversary of the acquisition. The fair value of the Company’s common stock was determined based on the average closing
price per share of the Company’s common stock over a 5-day period beginning two trading days before and ending two trading days after the amended terms
of the acquisition were agreed to and announced (September 3, 2003). The fair value of the options assumed was calculated as of September 24, 2003, based
on the Black-Scholes options pricing model. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141,
Business Combinations (“SFAS No. 141”), and accordingly the Company’s consolidated financial statements from September 24, 2003 include the impact of
the acquisition.

     The allocation of the purchase price for this acquisition, as of the date of the acquisition, is as follows (in thousands, except amortization period):

         
  Amortization Period  
Allocation of Purchase Price

 
(Years)

 
Amount

Fair value of tangible assets      $ 950 
Fair value of intangible assets:         

Brand name   4   2,000 
Contract backlog   1   700 
Backlog renewals   4   900 
Customer relationships   4   800 
Non-compete covenant   4   60 
Core technology   4   16,800 
In-process research and development   N/A   800 
Goodwill   N/A   40,059 

Total assets acquired       63,069 
Deferred tax liability       (8,708)
Accrued liabilities       (1,744)
Deferred revenue under maintenance obligations       (976)
Accounts payable       (629)

Total liabilities assumed       (12,057)
Total consideration, net      $ 51,012 
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     The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase transaction, and accordingly, the assets and liabilities of IDS were recorded at their estimated fair values at
the date of the acquisition. With the exception of the goodwill and acquired in-process research and development (“IPR&D”), the identified intangible assets
will be amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, with a weighted average life of approximately four years. The acquired IPR&D
technology was immediately expensed because technological feasibility had not been established and no future alternative use exists. In assessing IDS’s
IPR&D projects, the key characteristics of the products under development were considered as well as future prospects, the rate at which technology changes,
product life cycles, and the projects’ stages of development. The IPR&D technology write-off is included as a component of operating expenses in the
consolidated statement of operations. The fair value of IPR&D, as well as the fair value of the identifiable intangible assets, was determined, in part, by an
independent third party appraiser through established valuation techniques.

     The acquisition of IDS was structured as a tax-free acquisition. Therefore, the difference between the recognized fair values of the acquired net assets and
their historical tax base are not deductible for tax purposes. A deferred tax liability has been recognized for the difference between the assigned fair values of
intangible assets for book purposes and the tax basis of such assets.

     During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company recorded a non-cash adjustment of $172,000, relating to the reversal of excess accruals for
acquisition-related expenses. Such adjustment resulted in a reduction of goodwill. During the nine months ended September 30, 2004, the Company recorded
a non-cash adjustment of $42,000 relating to a change in estimate on abandoned leased facilities assumed during the acquisition. This adjustment resulted in
an increase in goodwill.

     The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial data represents the combined results of operations as if IDS had been combined with the
Company at the beginning of the respective period. This pro forma financial data includes the straight line amortization of intangibles over their respective
estimated useful lives and excludes the write-off of IPR&D (in thousands):

         
  Three Months Ended  Nine Months

  
September 30,

 
Ended September 30,

  
2003

 
2003

Revenue  $ 14,158  $ 35,657 
Pro forma net loss   (591)   (5,370)
Pro forma net loss per share – basic and diluted  $ (0.02)  $ (0.22)

     These results do not purport to be indicative of what would have occurred had the acquisition been made as of the beginning of the respective periods or
the results of operations which may occur in future periods.

WaferYield

     On May 31, 2003 the Company acquired WaferYield, Inc., (“WaferYield”) a privately held company, which primarily included WaferYield’s proprietary
shot map WAMA™ technology and related business. The WAMA product offering is designed to optimize
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semiconductor wafer shot maps to help semiconductor companies achieve greater yield and net die per wafer, higher stepper throughput and reduced probe
test costs. The acquisition added to the Company’s product offering and its capabilities in enabling semiconductor companies to improve yield and
performance of integrated circuits or ICs. The aggregate purchase price was $4.1 million, which included cash payments of $2.6 million and the recognition
of $1.5 million in other liabilities associated with future payments that were contingent upon the attainment of certain revenue performance objectives. Such
revenue performance objectives could have resulted in future payments of up to $5.0 million. There were no other assets or liabilities assumed in connection
with the acquisition. During 2004, the Company agreed to pay $1.0 million to settle the future incentive agreement. As a result of this settlement, the
remaining $4.0 million payable under the original agreement is no longer payable. Upon final determination of this liability, the Company reduced its core
technology intangible asset by $500,000 reflecting the difference between the incentive amount paid and the related liability recorded in connection with
the acquisition. The entire purchase price has been allocated to core technology, which is being amortized over an estimated useful life of 4 years. The
acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, and accordingly, the Company’s
consolidated financial statements from May 31, 2003 include the impact of the acquisition. Pro forma results of operations have not been presented because
the effect of the acquisition was not material to the Company. Amortization expense associated with acquired core technology recognized in connection with
the acquisition is anticipated to be approximately $900,000 annually.

3. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

     In October 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a consensus on its tentative conclusions for EITF Issue No. 03-05, Applicability of SOP
97-2 to Non-Software Deliverables in an Arrangement Containing More-Than Incidental Software (“EITF No. 03-05”). EITF No. 03-05 provides that
software deliverables are within the scope of SOP 97-2 as are non-software deliverables. The Company was required to adopt this consensus for fiscal periods
beginning after August 2003. The adoption of EITF No. 03-05 did not have an effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

     The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Financial Interpretation No. (“FIN”) 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN
46”), in January 2003, and a revised interpretation of FIN 46 (“FIN 46-R”) in December 2003. FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities to be
consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or
do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. The adoption
of FIN 46-R did not have an impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

     In December 2003, the Staff of the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, Revenue Recognition (“SAB No. 104”), which supercedes SAB
No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements (“SAB No. 101”). SAB No. 104’s primary purpose is to rescind accounting guidance contained in
SAB No. 101 related to multiple-element revenue arrangements and to rescind the SEC’s Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements Frequently Asked
Questions and Answers issued with SAB No. 101. The adoption of SAB No. 104 did not have an effect on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations.
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4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

     Accounts receivable include amounts that are unbilled at the end of the period. Unbilled accounts receivable are determined on an individual contract
basis and were approximately $3.4 million and $2.0 million at September 30, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively.

5. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

     Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average common shares outstanding for the period (excluding
outstanding stock options and shares subject to repurchase). Diluted net income per share reflects the weighted-average common shares outstanding plus the
potential effect of dilutive securities which are convertible into common shares (using the treasury stock method), except in cases where the effect would be
anti-dilutive. The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators used in computing basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (in
thousands, except per share data):

                 
  Three Months  Nine Months

  
Ended September 30,

 
Ended September 30,

  
2004

 
2003

 
2004

 
2003

Net income (loss)  $ 135  $ (1,231)  $ (2,167)  $ (3,241)
Shares:                 

Weighted average common shares
outstanding   25,319   23,394   25,393   23,218 

Weighted average common shares
outstanding subject to repurchase   (27)   (392)   (83)   (517)

Weighted average shares used in
computation:                 

Basic   25,293   23,002   25,310   22,701 
Diluted   25,983   23,002   25,310   22,701 

Net income (loss) per share – basic and diluted $ 0.01  $ (0.05)  $ (0.09)  $ (0.14)

     For the three month periods ended September 30, 2004 and 2003, the calculation of diluted net loss per share does not include, respectively, 998,000
outstanding stock options and 392,000 shares of common stock subject to repurchase as the effect would be anti-dilutive for the periods presented. For the
nine month periods ended September 30, 2004 and 2003, the calculation of diluted net loss per share does not include, respectively, 878,000 and 587,000
outstanding stock options and 83,000 and 517,000 shares of common stock subject to repurchase as the effect would be anti-dilutive for the periods
presented.
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6. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

     The components of comprehensive income (loss) are as follows (in thousands):

                 
  Three Months  Nine Months

  
Ended September 30,

 
Ended September 30,

  
2004

 
2003

 
2004

 
2003

Net income (loss)  $ 135  $ (1,231)  $ (2,167)  $ (3,241)
Foreign currency translation adjustments   (8)   17   (14)   45 
Comprehensive income (loss)  $ 127  $ (1,214)  $ (2,181)  $ (3,196)

7. GOODWILL AND PURCHASED INTANGIBLE ASSETS

     On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS No. 142”). SFAS No. 142 requires goodwill to be
tested for impairment under certain circumstances, written down when impaired, and requires purchased intangible assets other than goodwill to be amortized
over their useful lives unless these lives are determined to be indefinite. Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142 the Company ceased amortization of goodwill
with a net book value totaling $662,000, which included $192,000 of acquired workforce intangibles, net of related deferred tax liabilities which were
reclassified to goodwill pursuant to the requirements of SFAS No. 142.

     The following table provides information relating to the intangible assets and goodwill contained within the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2004 and December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

                 

  
September 30, 2004

      Purchase Price  Accumulated   

  
Cost

 
Adjustments

 
Amortization

 
Net Carrying Amount

Goodwill  $41,282  $ (130)  $ (562)  $ 40,590 
Acquired identifiable intangibles:                 

Acquired core technology  $21,602  $ (500)  $ (6,551)  $ 14,551 
Brand name   2,000   —   (542)   1,458 
Other acquired intangibles   2,460   —   (1,177)   1,283 

Total  $26,062  $ (500)  $ (8,270)  $ 17,292 
                 

  
December 31, 2003

      Purchase Price  Accumulated   

  
Cost

 
Adjustments

 
Amortization

 
Net Carrying Amount

Goodwill  $41,282  $ (172)  $ (562)  $ 40,548 
Acquired identifiable intangibles:                 

Acquired core technology  $21,602  $ —  $ (2,609)  $ 18,993 
Brand name   2,000   —   (167)   1,833 
Other acquired intangibles   2,460   —   (380)   2,080 

Total  $26,062  $ —  $ (3,156)  $ 22,906 

     As required by SFAS No. 142, the Company performed its transitional impairment test of goodwill as of January 1, 2002, at which time the Company
determined that the carrying value of goodwill had not been impaired. SFAS No. 142 also requires that goodwill be tested for impairment on an annual basis
and more frequently in certain circumstances. Accordingly, the
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Company has selected December 31, as the date to perform the annual testing requirements. As of December 31, 2003, the Company completed its annual
testing requirements and determined that the carrying value of goodwill had not been impaired.

     The Company expects that annual amortization of acquired intangible assets to be as follows (in thousands):

     
Year Ending December 31,

 
Amount

2004 (remaining three months)  $ 1,501 
2005   6,004 
2006   6,004 
2007   3,783 

Total  $17,292 

8. CUSTOMER AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

     The Company operates in one segment. The Company had revenues from individual customers in excess of 10% of total revenues as follows:

                 
  Three Months  Nine Months

  
Ended September 30,

 
Ended September 30,

Customer
 

2004
 

2003
 

2004
 

2003

A   15%   26%   19%   25%
C   12%   9%   11%   13%
G   12%   12%   13%   14%
H   —   1%   —   11%
I   6%   18%   4%   13%
J   6%   9%   13%   7%

     The Company had gross accounts receivable from the following individual customers in excess of 10% of gross accounts receivable as follows:

         
Customer

 
September 30, 2004

 
December 31, 2003

A   18%   25%
C   9%   20%
J   6%   18%
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     Revenues from customers by geographic area are as follows (in thousands):

                 
  Three Months  Nine Months

  
Ended September 30,

 
Ended September 30,

  
2004

 
2003

 
2004

 
2003

Asia  $10,772  $ 8,376  $28,239  $21,719 
United States   3,752   1,895   11,695   6,218 
Europe   1,926   1,029   4,361   2,520 
Total  $16,450  $11,300  $44,295  $30,457 

     As of September 30, 2004 and December 31, 2003, long-lived assets related to PDF Solutions GmbH (formerly AISS), located in Germany, totaled
$834,000 and $863,000, respectively, of which $659,000 and $718,000, respectively, relates to acquired intangibles and goodwill. The majority of the
Company’s remaining long-lived assets are in the United States.

9. STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

     In February 2003, the Board of Directors approved a program to repurchase up to $10.0 million of the Company’s common stock in the open market. The
Company did not repurchase any shares of its common stock under the program during the year ended December 31, 2003. During the three months ended
September 30, 2004, the Company repurchased 198,279 shares of its common stock at an average price of $9.40 per share for a total cost of $1.9 million. For
the nine months ended September 30, 2004 the Company has repurchased 505,579 shares at an average price of $9.51 per share for a total cost of
$4.8 million. Under this authorization, the Company may continue to make additional stock repurchases from time to time, depending on market conditions,
stock price and other factors. At September 30, 2004, $5.2 million remained available under the program to repurchase additional shares.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Forward-Looking Statements

     The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These statements relate to future events or our future financial
performance. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may”, “will”, “should”, “expect”, “plan”, “anticipate”,
“believe”, “estimate”, “predict”, “potential” or “continue”, the negative effect of terms like these or other comparable terminology. These statements are only
predictions. These statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual events or results to differ
materially. All forward-looking statements included in this document are based on information available to us on the date of filing, and we assume no
obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. In evaluating these statements, you should specifically consider various factors, including the
risks outlined under the caption “Certain Risks Which May Affect Our Future Results” set forth at the end of this Item 2 and set forth at the end of Item 7 in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, as amended. We caution investors that our business and financial performance are
subject to substantial risks and uncertainties.

Overview

     Our technologies and services enable semiconductor companies to improve the yield and performance of integrated circuits, or ICs, by integrating the
design and manufacturing processes. We believe that our solutions improve a semiconductor company’s time-to-market, yield and ultimately product
profitability. Our solutions combine proprietary manufacturing process simulation software, yield and performance modeling software, design-for-
manufacturability software, test chips, a proprietary electrical wafer test system, yield and performance enhancement methodologies, yield management
systems, and professional services. We analyze yield loss mechanisms to identify, quantify and correct the issues that cause yield loss, as an integral part of
the IC design process. This drives IC design and manufacturing improvements that enable our customers to have higher initial yields and achieve and exceed
targeted IC yield and performance throughout product life cycles. Our solution is designed to increase the initial yield when a design first enters a
manufacturing line, increase the rate at which that yield improves, and allow subsequent product designs to be added to manufacturing lines more quickly
and easily. The result of implementing our solutions is the creation of value that can be measured based on improvements to our customers’ actual yield. We
align our financial interests with the yield and performance improvements realized by our customers, and receive revenue based on this value. To date, we
have sold our technologies and services to semiconductor companies including leading integrated device manufacturers, fabless semiconductor companies
and foundries.

     From our incorporation in 1992 through late 1995, we were primarily focused on research and development of our proprietary manufacturing process
simulation and yield and performance modeling software. From late 1995 through late 1998, we continued to refine and sell our software, while expanding
our offering to include yield and performance improvement consulting services. In late 1998, we began to sell our software and consulting services, together
with our newly developed proprietary technologies, as Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions, reflecting our current business model. In April 2000, we expanded
our research and development team and gained additional technology by acquiring AISS, now operating as PDF
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Solutions, GmbH, which continues to develop software and provide development services to the semiconductor industry. In July 2001, we completed the
initial public offering of our common stock. In 2003, we further enhanced our product and service offerings through the acquisitions of IDS and WaferYield.

Industry Trend

     Demand for consumer electronics continues to drive technological innovation as the need for products which have greater performance, lower power
consumption, reduced costs and smaller size continues to grow with each new product generation. To meet this demand, IC manufacturers and designers are
constantly challenged to improve the overall performance of ICs by designing and manufacturing ICs with more embedded applications to create greater
functionality. As a result, in 2003 and during the first nine months of 2004 more and more companies expanded or advanced their design and manufacturing
processes to develop and produce deep submicron ICs containing component sizes measured at 130 nanometers and below. As this trend continues,
companies will continually be challenged to improve process capabilities to optimally produce ICs with minimal systematic and random yield loss, which is
driven by the lack of compatibility between the design and its respective manufacturing process. Historically, yield loss was predominantly the result of
random contamination, or defect-limited yield, within the IC manufacturing process. We believe as volume production of deep submicron ICs continues to
grow, the difficulties of integrating IC designs with their respective processes will create a greater need for products and services that address the performance
yield loss issues the semiconductor industry is facing today and will face in the future.

Financial Highlights

     We continued to see greater adoption of our products and services through the expansion of our customer base both domestically and internationally.
Financial highlights for the three months ended September 30, 2004 were as follows:

• Revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2004 totaled $16.4 million, a quarterly high, and our 7th quarter of sequential revenue increases.
This represents an increase of 46% from revenue of $11.3 million reported for the three months ended September 30, 2003. This increase is attributable
to a greater number of solution implementations as well as an increase in sales of our software applications and related implementation services. For the
three months ended September 30, 2004, three customers each contributed over 10% of revenue and together accounted for 39% of total revenue
compared to three customers each contributing over 10% of revenue and together accounting for 56% of total revenue for the three months ended
September 30, 2003. Such statistics support our broadening customer base and less reliance on a few large customers.

 
• Net income of $135,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2004, improved from a net loss of $1.2 million for the three months ended

September 30, 2003. The net income for three months ended September 30, 2004 included amortization of acquired core technology and intangible
assets of $1.6 million and stock-based compensation amortization of $134,000 while the net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2003
included the write-off of in-process research and development of $800,000, amortization of acquired core technology and intangible assets of $789,000
and stock based compensation amortization of $366,000. The increase in revenue and controlled expenses were the primary reasons for the
improvement in profitability.

 
• Net income per share was $0.01 for the three months ended September 30, 2004 compared to a net loss per share of $0.05 for the three months ended

September 30, 2003, an improvement of $0.06 per share.
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Financial highlights for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 were as follows

• Revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 totaled $44.3 million, an increase of 45% from $30.5 million reported for the nine months
ended September 30, 2003. This increase is attributable to a greater number of solution implementations as well as an increase in sales of our software
applications and related implementation services. For the nine months ended September 30, 2004, four customers each contributed over 10% of
revenue and together accounted for 56% of total revenue compared to five customers each contributing over 10% of revenue and together accounting
for 76% of total revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2003. Such statistics support our broadening customer base and less reliance on a
few large customers.

 
• Net loss of $2.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, decreased from a net loss of $3.2 million for the nine months ended

September 30, 2003. The net loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 included amortization of acquired core technology and intangible
assets of $5.1 million and stock-based compensation amortization of $681,000 while the net loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2003
included amortization of acquired core technology and intangible assets of $1.0 million, the write-off of in-process research and development of
$800,000 and stock based compensation amortization of $1.3 million. The increase in revenue and controlled expenses were the primary reasons for
the improvement in profitability.

 
• Net loss per share was $0.09 for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 compared to a net loss per share of $0.14 for the nine months ended

September 30, 2004, an improvement of $0.05 per share.
 

• Cash increased $3.8 million, to $42.9 million, during the nine months ended September 30, 2004. Net cash provided by operating activities and used
in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 totaled $5.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively. Net cash used by financing
activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 totaled $231,000. During the nine months ended September 30, 2004, we used $4.8 million to
repurchase 505,579 shares of our own common stock at an average price of $9.51 per share. The cash used in financing activities was partially offset by
cash provided by the collection of notes receivable from stockholders, the exercise of stock options and proceeds from the employee stock purchase
plan.

Acquisitions

     On May 31, 2003, we completed our acquisition of WaferYield, which primarily included WaferYield’s proprietary shot map WAMA™ technology and
related business. The WAMA product offering is designed to optimize semiconductor wafer shot maps to help semiconductor companies achieve greater
yield and net die per wafer, higher stepper throughput and reduced probe test cost. We believe that the acquisition added to our product offering and our
capabilities in enabling semiconductor companies to improve yield and performance of ICs. The aggregate purchase price was $4.1 million, which included
cash payments of $2.6 million and the recognition of $1.5 million in other liabilities associated with future payments that were contingent upon the
attainment of certain revenue performance objectives. Such revenue performance objectives could have resulted in future payments of up to $5.0 million.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2004, the Company agreed to pay $1.0 million to settle the future incentive agreement. As a result of this
settlement, the remaining $4.0 million payable under the original agreement is no longer payable. Upon final determination of this liability, the Company
reduced its core technology intangible asset by $500,000 reflecting the difference between the incentive amount paid and the related liability recorded in
connection with the acquisition.

     On September 24, 2003, we completed our acquisition of IDS. IDS developed and licensed yield management software applications and provided services
to enable customers to efficiently gather, retrieve and analyze manufacturing data, identifying areas for yield improvement. We believe that our acquisition
of IDS provides our customers with greater capabilities for managing product yield improvement through the use of the acquired technology and services.
The aggregate purchase price was $51.0 million which included the payment in

16



Table of Contents

cash of $23.0 million, the issuance of 2.0 million shares of our common stock valued at $25.0 million, the assumption of stock options valued at $1.7 million
and acquisition costs of $1.3 million. In connection with the acquisition, $1.0 million in cash and 400,000 shares of common stock were withheld from the
purchase price and placed in escrow as security against certain financial contingencies. Cash held in escrow, less any amounts deducted to satisfy
contingencies, will be released no later than the 24-month anniversary following the completion of the acquisition. Fifty percent of the shares held in escrow
were released upon the 12-month anniversary of the acquisition and the remaining shares, less any amounts deducted to satisfy contingencies, shall be
released upon the 24-month anniversary of the acquisition. In connection with the acquisition, we recorded $39.9 million in goodwill, net of subsequent
adjustments related to certain accruals recognized in the acquisition. Goodwill reflects the excess of the amount paid over the identifiable assets assumed in
the acquisition.

     It is our strategic objective to provide industry standard technologies and services to integrate IC designs and manufacturing processes. With over 30
semiconductor companies as customers and an installed base of over 1,000 dataPOWER users, the acquisition of IDS not only provides us with future revenue
streams through the existing product offerings while strengthening the technology available to our professional services teams, but also positions us to
establish a de-facto standard for yield management systems in the semiconductor industry. The acquisition broadens our reach into fabrication facilities,
providing visibility, analysis capability and data collection from assembly and test equipment on a standardized platform from which we can offer additional
standard PDF applications. We believe that the collective technology base will also create a substantial market opportunity to address the needs of product
engineers who, in our opinion, represent a largely underserved segment, since they are not normally within the organizations served either by the equipment
or electronic design automation companies. Nonetheless, the needs of the product engineer, and the financial impact of their work, are dramatically
increasing with the further disaggregation of the industry combined with increasing product-specific yield and performance sensitivities at advanced
technology nodes. We believe the IDS acquisition allows us, in the longer term, to provide products and services to fulfill this need.

Critical Accounting Policies

     Financial Reporting Release No. 60 requires all companies to include a discussion of critical accounting policies or methods used in the preparation of
financial statements. The notes to the consolidated financial statements set forth in this report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 which includes a summary of the
significant accounting policies and methods used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. The following is a brief discussion of the more
significant accounting policies and methods that we use.

General

     Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our preparation of these consolidated financial
statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other
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assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. The most significant estimates and assumptions relate to revenue recognition, software
development costs, recoverability of goodwill and acquired intangible assets, estimated useful lives of acquired intangibles and the realization of deferred
tax assets. Actual amounts may differ from such estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition

     We derive revenue from two sources: Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions and gain share. We recognize revenue in accordance with the provisions of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position (“SOP”) No. 81-1, Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain
Production-Type Contracts and SOP No. 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, as amended.

     Design-to-Silicon-Yield Solutions — Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions revenue is derived from solution implementations, software licenses and software
support and maintenance. Revenue recognition for each element of Design-to-Silicon Yield solutions is as follows:

     Solution Implementations — We generate a significant portion of our revenue from fixed-price contracts delivered over a specific period of time. These
contracts require the accurate estimation of the cost to perform obligations and the overall scope of each engagement. Revenue under contracts for solution
implementation services is recognized as the services are performed using the cost-to-cost percentage of completion method of contract accounting. Losses
on solution implementation contracts are recognized when determined. Revisions in profit estimates are reflected in the period in which the conditions that
require the revisions become known and can be estimated. If we do not accurately estimate the resources required or the scope of work to be performed, or
do not manage the projects properly within the planned period of time or satisfy our obligations under contracts, resulting contract margins could be
materially different than those anticipated when the contract was executed. Any such reductions in contract margin could have a material negative impact
on our operating results.

     On occasion, we have licensed our software products as a component of our fixed price solutions implementations. In such instances, the software
products are licensed to the customer over the specified term of the agreement with support and maintenance to be provided over the license term. Under
these arrangements, where vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value (“VSOE”) does not exist to allocate a portion of the total fee to the undelivered
elements, revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the agreement. Costs incurred under these arrangements are deferred and recognized in proportion
to revenue recognized under these arrangements.

     Software Licenses and Support and Maintenance — We have also licensed our software products separate from our solution implementation services. In
such cases revenue is recognized under the residual method when (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the fee is
fixed and determinable, (iv) collectibility is probable and the arrangement does not require services that are essential to the functionality of the software.
When arrangements include multiple elements such as support and maintenance, consulting (other than for our fixed price solution implementations),
installation and training services, revenue is allocated to each element of a transaction based upon its fair value as determined by our VSOE. VSOE is
generally established for maintenance based upon negotiated renewal rates while VSOE for consulting, installation and training services is established
based upon our customary pricing for such services when sold separately. Revenue from support and maintenance services is recognized ratably over the
term of the support and maintenance contract, generally one year, while revenue from consulting, installation and training services is recognized as the
services are performed. When VSOE does not exist to allocate a portion of the total fee to the undelivered elements revenue is recognized ratably over the
term of the underlying element for which VSOE does not exist. No revenue has been recognized under arrangements with extended payment terms in excess
of amounts due. If the arrangement includes services that are determined to be essential to the functionality of the software, then the entire fee, less amounts
allocated to support and maintenance, are recognized using the cost-to-cost percentage of completion method of contract accounting.
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     Gain Share — Gain share revenue represents profit sharing and performance incentives earned based upon our customers reaching certain defined
operational levels. Upon achieving such operational levels, we receive either a fixed fee and/or variable fee based on the units sold by the customer. Due to
the uncertainties surrounding attainment of such operational levels, we recognize gain share revenue (to the extent of completion of the related solution
implementation contract) upon receipt of performance reports or other related information from our customers supporting the determination of amounts and
probability of collection. Our continued receipt of gain share revenue is dependent on many factors which are outside our control, including among others,
continued production of the related ICs by our customers, sustained yield improvements by our customers and our ability to enter into new Design-to-
Silicon-Yield solutions contracts containing gain share provisions.

Software Development Costs

     Costs for the development of new software products and substantial enhancements to existing software products are expensed as incurred until
technological feasibility has been established, at which time any additional costs would be capitalized in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 86, Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed. Because we believe our current process for
developing software is essentially completed concurrently with the establishment of technological feasibility, no costs have been capitalized to date.

Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets

     As of September 30, 2004, we had $57.9 million of goodwill and intangible assets. In assessing the recoverability of our goodwill and intangible assets, we
must make assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may be
required to record impairment charges for these assets. We evaluate goodwill for impairment pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. As of December 31, 2003, we completed our annual testing requirements and determined that the carrying value of goodwill had not been
impaired.

     We are currently amortizing our acquired intangible assets over estimated useful lives of periods ranging from 1 to 4 years, which is based on the estimated
period of benefit to be delivered from such assets. However, a decrease in the estimated useful lives of such assets will cause additional amortization expense
or an impairment of such asset in future periods.

Realization of Deferred Tax Assets

     Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on our ability to generate future taxable income and utilize tax-planning strategies. We have recorded a
deferred tax asset in the amount that is more likely than not to be realized based on current estimations and assumptions. We evaluate the need for a valuation
allowance on an annual basis. Any resulting changes to the valuation allowance will result in an adjustment to income in the period the determination is
made.
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Results of Operations

     The following table sets forth, for years indicated, the percentage of total revenue represented by the line items reflected in our consolidated statements of
operations:

                 
  Three Months Ended  Nine Months Ended

  
September 30,

 
September 30,

  
2004

 
2003

 
2004

 
2003

Revenue:                 
Design-to-silicon-yield solutions   85%   80%   89%   83%
Gain share   15   20   11   17 

Total revenue   100   100   100   100 
Cost and expenses:                 

Cost of design-to-silicon-yield solutions:                 
Direct costs of design-to-silicon-yield solutions   36   33   35   35 
Amortization of acquired core technology   8   6   9   3 

Research and development   30   39   34   43 
Selling, general and administrative   23   28   25   29 
Stock-based compensation amortization   1   3   2   4 
Amortization of other acquired intangible assets   2   1   3   — 
In-process research and development   —   7   —   3 

Total costs and expenses   100   117   108   117 
Income (loss) from operations   0   (17)   (8)   (17)
Interest and other income, net   1   2   1   3 
Income (loss) before taxes   1   (15)   (7)   (14)
Tax provision (benefit)   —   (4)   (2)   (3)
Net income (loss)   1%   (11)%   (5)%   (11)%

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2004 and 2003

                         

  
Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
          $  %  % of  % of
Revenue

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %'s)                         
Design-to-silicon-yield solutions  $ 14,036  $ 9,033  $ 5,003   55%   85%   80%
Gain share   2,414   2,267   147   6%   15%   20%
Total  $ 16,450  $ 11,300  $ 5,150   46%   100%   100%

     Design-to-Silicon-Yield Solutions. Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions revenue is derived from solution implementations, software licenses and software
support and maintenance. The increase in Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions revenue of $5.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2004
compared to the three months ended September 30, 2003 was attributable to a greater number of solution implementations as well as an increase in sales of
our software applications and related implementation services primarily from new products obtained in our acquisition of IDS.
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     Gain Share. Gain share revenue represents profit sharing and performance incentives earned based upon our customers reaching certain defined
operational levels. Gain share revenue increased approximately $147,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the three months
ended September 30, 2003. The increase in gain share revenue during the quarter was primarily attributable to our customer’s increasing production volumes
at new technology nodes. Our gain share revenue may continue to fluctuate from period to period. Our continued receipt of gain share revenue is dependent
on many factors that are outside our control, including among others, continued production of ICs by our customers, sustained yield improvements by our
customers and our ability to enter into new Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions contracts containing gain share provisions.

                         

  
Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Cost of Design-to-Silicon Yield          $  %  % of  % of
Solutions

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Direct costs of design-to-silicon- yield solutions  $ 5,887  $ 3,768  $ 2,119   56%   36%   33%
Amortization of acquired core technology   1,266   652   614   94%   8%   6%
Total  $ 7,153  $ 4,420  $ 2,733   62%   44%   39%

     Direct Costs of Design-to-Silicon-Yield Solutions. Direct costs of Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions consist of material, labor and overhead costs
associated with solution implementations. Costs include purchased material, employee compensation and benefits, travel, facilities-related costs and the cost
of utilizing sub-contractors, when such service is required. The increase in the direct costs of Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions of $2.1 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily attributable to increased personnel-related costs,
including the shift of resources from engineering to client services, and travel. If we do not accurately estimate the resources required or the scope of work to
be performed, or we do not manage the projects properly within the planned period of time or satisfy our obligations under contracts, resulting contract
margins could be materially different than those anticipated when the contract was executed. Any such reductions in contract margin could have a material
negative impact on our operating results.

     Amortization of Acquired Core Technology. The increase in amortization of acquired core technology of $614,000 for the three months ended
September 30, 2004 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily attributable to the recognition and amortization of acquired core
technology associated with our acquisition of IDS and WaferYield which occurred during September 2003 and May 2003. We anticipate amortization of
acquired core technology to be $1.3 million for the remaining three months in 2004, $5.1 million in 2005, $5.1 million in 2006 and $3.1 million in 2007.

                         

  
Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
          $  %  % of  % of
Research and Development

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                     
Research and development  $ 4,940  $ 4,421  $ 519   12%   30%   39%
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     Research and Development. Research and development expenses consist primarily of personnel-related costs to support product development activities,
including compensation and benefits, outside development services, travel and facilities cost allocations. The increase in research and development expenses
of $519,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily due to increased
personnel-related expenses, a result of our acquisition of IDS and an increase in outside technical services. We anticipate that we will continue to commit
considerable resources to research and development in the future and that these expenses may increase in absolute dollars.

                         

  
Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Selling, General and          $  %  % of  % of
Administrative

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                     
Selling, general and administrative  $ 3,801  $ 3,106  $ 695   22%   23%   28%

     Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation and benefits for sales, marketing and
general and administrative personnel in addition to outside sales commissions, legal and accounting services, marketing communications, travel and
facilities cost allocations. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses of $695,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2004 compared
to the three months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily due to increases in personnel-related costs, and accounting and legal fees associated with the
increase in corporate governance activities. We expect that selling, general and administrative expenses will increase in absolute dollars to support increased
selling and administrative efforts in the future as we expand our operations to support our growing customer base.

                         

  
Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Stock-Based Compensation          $  %  % of  % of
Amortization

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                     
Stock-based compensation amortization  $ 134  $ 366  $ (232)   (63)%   1%   3%

     Stock-Based Compensation Amortization. The Company amortizes deferred stock-based compensation to expense under APB No. 25 Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, using the graded vesting method which results in higher amortization expense during the initial period following the respective option
grants. The decrease in stock-based compensation amortization of $232,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the three months
ended September 30, 2003 was primarily due to the effects of the graded vesting method of amortization which results in higher amortization expense during
the initial periods following the respective option grants. This decrease was partially offset by the recognition of $45,000 associated with the grant of 10,000
fully-vested stock options to a non-employee. We anticipate amortization of stock-based compensation to continue to decrease in future periods.
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Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Amortization of Other          $  %  % of  % of
Acquired Intangible Assets

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Amortization of other acquired intangible assets  $ 351  $ 137  $ 214   156%   2%   1%

     Amortization of Other Acquired Intangible Assets. Amortization of other acquired intangible assets increased $214,000 for the three months ended
September 30, 2004 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2003, as a result of the recognition and amortization of acquired other intangible
assets associated with our acquisition of IDS. We anticipate amortization of these other acquired intangible assets to continue to decrease in future periods.

                         

  
Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Write-off of In-process          $  %  % of  % of
Research and Development

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Write-off of in-process research and development  $ —  $ 800  $ (800)   (100)%   —   7%

     Write-off of In-process Research and Development. Write-off of in-process research and development of $800,000 in 2003 was related to the acquisition of
IDS and was associated with acquired technology that had not reached technological feasibility and for which there was no alternative future use. Through
the use of an independent valuation specialist, we determined the fair value of the acquired in-process technology by estimating the cash flows related to
projects under development and the estimated revenues and operating profits related to those projects. The resulting estimated cash flows were discounted to
their net present value. We expect the acquired in-process technology to be developed into commercially feasible products in the future. However, there can
be no assurance as to when such products will become commercially feasible or if they will reach commercial feasibility at all.

                         

  
Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
          $  %  % of  % of
Interest and Other Income, Net

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Interest and other income, net  $ 150  $ 278  $ (128)   (46)%   1%   2%

     Interest and Other Income, Net. The decrease in interest and other income, of $128,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the
three months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily due to interest earned on lower average cash and cash equivalent balances resulting from payments in
connection with the acquisition of IDS, partially offset by higher interest rates on such short-term investments.

                         

  
Three Months Ended September 30,

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
          $  %  % of  % of
Tax Provision (Benefit)

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Tax provision (benefit) for Income Taxes  $ 86  $ (441)  $ 527   (120)%   1%   (4)%
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     Tax Provision (Benefit). The increase in tax provision of $527,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the three months ended
September 30, 2003 was primarily due to a profit before tax being generated compared to a net loss before taxes for the period ending September 30, 2003.

Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2004 and 2003

                         

  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
          $  %  % of  % of
Revenue

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                     
Design-to-silicon-yield solutions  $ 39,244  $ 25,175  $ 14,069   56%   89%   83%
Gain share   5,051   5,282   (231)   (4)%   11%   17%
Total  $ 44,295  $ 30,457  $ 13,838   45%   100%   100%

     Design-to-Silicon-Yield Solutions. The increase in Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions revenue of $14.1 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2004 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2003 was attributable to a greater number of solution implementations as well as an increase in sales
of our software applications and related implementation services primarily from new products obtained in our acquisition of IDS.

     Gain Share. Gain share revenue decreased $231,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the nine months ended September 30,
2003. The decrease in gain share revenue was primarily attributable to the continued transition of older gain share contracts whose gain share periods had
expired coupled with lower production volumes by our customers at new technology nodes. Our gain share revenue may continue to fluctuate from period to
period. Our continued receipt of gain share revenue is dependent on many factors that are outside our control, including among others, continued production
of ICs by our customers, sustained yield improvements by our customers and our ability to enter into new Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions contracts
containing gain share provisions.

                         

  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Cost of Design-to-Silicon Yield          $  %  % of  % of
Solutions

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Direct costs of design-to-silicon- yield solutions  $ 15,610  $ 10,726  $ 4,884   46%   35%   35%
Amortization of acquired core technology   3,943   818   3,125   382%   9%   3%
Total  $ 19,553  $ 11,544  $ 8,009   69%   44%   38%

     Direct Costs of Design-to-Silicon-Yield Solutions. The increase in the direct costs of Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions of $4.9 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2004 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily attributable to increased personnel-related costs, including
the shift of resources from engineering to client services, and the use of sub-contractors necessary to support our increased Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions
implementations.

     Amortization of Acquired Core Technology. The increase in amortization of acquired core technology of $3.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2004 compared to the
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nine months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily attributable to the recognition and amortization of acquired core technology associated with our
acquisitions of IDS and WaferYield which occurred during September 2003 and May 2003, respectively.

                         

  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
          $  %  % of  % of
Research and Development

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                     
Research and development  $ 14,980  $ 13,123  $ 1,857   14%   34%   43%

     Research and Development. The increase in research and development expenses of $1.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 compared
to the nine months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily due to increased personnel-related expenses, a result of our acquisitions of IDS and WaferYield
in September 2003 and May 2003, respectively. We anticipate that we will continue to commit considerable resources to research and development in the
future and that these expenses may increase in absolute dollars.

                         

  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Selling, General and          $  %  % of  % of
Administrative

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                     
Selling, general and administrative  $ 11,220  $ 8,720  $ 2,500   29%   25%   29%

     Selling, General and Administrative. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses of $2.5 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2004 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily due to increases in employee and outside sales commissions as a result of
increased revenue, personnel-related expenses and legal and accounting service fees associated with the increase in corporate governance activities, partially
offset by a reduction in our allowance for doubtful accounts.

                         

  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Stock-Based Compensation          $  %  % of  % of
Amortization

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                     
Stock-based compensation amortization  $ 681  $ 1,344  $ (663)   (49)%   2%   4%

     Stock-Based Compensation Amortization. The decrease in stock-based compensation amortization of $663,000 for the nine months ended September 30,
2004 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily attributable to the effects of the graded vesting method of amortization which
results in higher amortization expense during the initial periods following the respective option grants. This decrease was partially offset by the recognition
of $45,000 and $227,000 associated with the grant of stock options to non-employees in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Additionally, during the nine months
ended September 30, 2004 we recognized $157,000 in compensation expense associated with the acceleration of stock options to a former employee.
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Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Amortization of Other          $  %  % of  % of
Acquired Intangible Assets

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Amortization of other acquired intangible assets  $ 1,171  $ 137  $ 1,034   755%   3%   — 

     Amortization of Other Acquired Intangible Assets. Amortization of other acquired intangible assets increased $1.0 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2004 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2003, as a result of the recognition and amortization of acquired other intangible
assets associated with our acquisition of IDS.

                         

  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
Write-off of In-process          $  %  % of  % of
Research and Development

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Write-off of in-process research and development  —  $ 800  $ (800)   (100)%   —   3%
                   

     Write-off of In-process Research and Development. Write-off of in-process research and development of $800,000 in 2003 was related to the acquisition of
IDS and was associated with acquired technology that had not reached technological feasibility and for which there was no alternative future use. Through
the use of an independent valuation specialist, we determined the fair value of the acquired in-process technology by estimating the cash flows related to
projects under development and the estimated revenues and operating profits related to those projects. The resulting estimated cash flows were discounted to
their net present value. We expect the acquired in-process technology to be developed into commercially feasible products in the future. However, there can
be no assurance as to when such products will become commercially feasible or if they will reach commercial feasibility at all.

                         

  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
          $  %  % of  % of
Interest and Other Income, Net

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Interest and Other Income, net  $ 441  $ 998  $ (557)   (56)%   1%   3%

     Interest and Other Income, Net. The decrease in interest and other income, net of $557,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the
nine months ended September 30, 2003 was primarily due to interest earned on lower average cash and cash equivalent balances resulting from payments in
connection with the acquisitions of WaferYield and IDS, partially offset by higher interest rates on such short-term investments during the nine months ended
September 30, 2004.

                         

  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

 
Nine Months Ended September 30,

                  2004  2003
          $  %  % of  % of
Tax Provision (Benefit)

 
2004

 
2003

 
Change

 
Change

 
Revenue

 
Revenue

(In thousands, except for %’s)                         
Tax Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes  $ (702)  $ (972)  $ 270   (28)%   (2)%   (3)%
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     Tax Provision (Benefit). The decrease in tax benefit of $270,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2003 was primarily due to a decrease in the net loss before taxes and the expected realization of certain tax credits.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

     Net cash provided by operating activities was $5.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 compared to net cash used in operating
activities of $4.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003. After adjusting the net loss of $2.2 million by the amortization of acquired
intangible assets of $5.1 million, depreciation and amortization of $1.9 million, stock-based compensation of $681,000, and the change in deferred taxes of
$1.4 million, our adjusted results provided approximately $4.2 million in cash. Net cash was also provided by increases in billings in excess of recognized
revenue of $2.3 million, accrued compensation and benefits of $1.0 million, accounts payable of $759,000, taxes payable of $414,000 and decreases in
prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets of $165,000 offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $3.6 million. The increase in billings in
excess of revenue was due to the timing of billing installments specified in certain customer contracts. The increase in accrued compensation and benefits
was primarily the result of accruals for personnel costs and sales commissions. The increase in accounts payable was the result of increases in general
expenditures to support the growth of the business. The decrease in prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets was primarily the result of a
decrease in prepaid insurance. The increase in accounts receivable is attributable to the increased billings, in accordance with contract terms at the end of the
period ending September 30, 2004.

     Net cash used in investing activities was $1.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 compared to $22.2 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2003. During the nine months ended September 30, 2004, net cash used in investing activities consisted of the purchase of property and
equipment to help support our growth. During the nine months ended September 30, 2003, net cash used in investing activities consisted of $1.7 million in
purchases of property and equipment in addition to $17.9 million paid in connection with our acquisition of IDS and $2.6 million paid in connection with
our acquisition of WaferYield.

     Net cash used in financing activities was $231,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 compared to net cash provided by financing activities
of $2.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2003. The decrease was primarily attributable to the repurchase of 505,579 shares of our common
stock at a average purchase price of $9.51 per share for a total cost of $4.8 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2004, partially offset by
increases in the repayment of employee notes receivable of $1.2 million and the exercise of employee stock options under the 2001 Stock Plan of
$1.0 million.

     As of September 30, 2004, our working capital was $45.6 million, compared with $42.6 million as of December 31, 2003. Cash and cash equivalents as of
September 30, 2004 were $42.9 million compared to $39.1 million as of December 31, 2003, an increase of $3.8 million. Increases in cash were primarily
attributable to operating activities. We expect to experience growth in our overall expenses, in order to execute our business plan. As a result, we anticipate
that our overall expenses, as well as planned capital expenditures, may constitute a material use of our cash resources. In addition, we may use cash resources
to repurchase common stock, fund potential investments in, or acquisitions of complementary products, technologies or businesses. We believe that our
existing cash resources and anticipated funds from operations will satisfy our
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cash requirements to fund our operating activities, capital expenditures and other obligations for at least the next twelve months. However, in the event that
during such period, or thereafter, we are not successful in generating sufficient cash flows from operations we may need to raise additional capital through
private or public financings, strategic relationships or other arrangements, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all.

     We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, investments in special purpose entities or undisclosed borrowings or debt, other than operating leases
on our facilities. Additionally, we have not entered into any derivative contracts. As of September 30, 2004, we had no foreign currency contracts
outstanding.

     We lease our facilities under operating lease agreements that expire at various dates through 2012. The following table represents our future minimum
annual lease payments (in thousands):

     
Year Ending December 31,

 
Amount

2004 (remaining three months)  $ 681 
2005   2,475 
2006   2,423 
2007   2,424 
2008   776 
Thereafter   1,681 

Total  $10,460 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

     In October 2003, the EITF reached a consensus on its tentative conclusions for EITF Issue No. 03-05, Applicability of SOP 97-2 to Non-Software
Deliverables in an Arrangement Containing More-Than Incidental Software (“EITF No. 03-05”). EITF No. 03-05 discusses that software deliverables are
within the scope of SOP 97-2 as are non-software deliverables. We are required to adopt this consensus for fiscal periods beginning after August 2003. The
adoption of EITF No. 03-05 did not have an effect on our financial position and results of operations.

     The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Financial Interpretation Number (“FIN”) 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN
46”), in January 2003, and a revised interpretation of FIN46 (“FIN 46-R”) in December 2003. FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities to be
consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or
do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. The adoption
of FIN46-R did not have an impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

     In December 2003, the Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, Revenue Recognition
(“SAB No. 104”), which supercedes SAB No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements (“SAB No. 101”). SAB No. 104’s primary purpose is to
rescind accounting guidance contained in SAB No. 101 related to multiple-element revenue arrangements and to rescind the SEC’s Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements Frequently Asked Questions and Answers issued with SAB No. 101. The adoption of SAB No. 104 did not have an effect on our
financial position and results of operations.
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CERTAIN RISKS WHICH MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE RESULTS

If semiconductor designers and manufacturers do not continue to adopt our Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions, we may be unable to increase or maintain
our revenue.

     If semiconductor designers and manufacturers do not continue to adopt our Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions, our revenue could decline. To date, we have
worked with a limited number of semiconductor companies on a limited number of IC products and processes. To be successful, we will need to continue to
enter into agreements covering a larger number of IC products and processes with existing customers and new customers. Our existing customers are primarily
large integrated device manufacturers, or IDMs. We target as new customers additional IDMs, fabless semiconductor companies and foundries, as well as
system manufacturers. Factors that may limit adoption of our Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions by semiconductor companies include:

• our customers’ failure to achieve satisfactory yield improvements using our Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions;
 

• a decrease in demand for semiconductors generally or the demand for deep submicron semiconductors failing to grow as rapidly as expected;
 

• the industry may develop alternative methods to enhance the integration between the semiconductor design and manufacturing processes due to a
rapidly evolving market and the likely emergence of new technologies;

 
• our existing and potential customers’ reluctance to understand and accept our innovative gain share fee component; and

 
• our customers’ concern about our ability to keep highly competitive information confidential.

Our earnings per share and other key operating results may be unusually high in a given quarter, thereby raising investors’ expectations, and then
unusually low in the next quarter, thereby disappointing investors, which could cause our stock price to drop.

     Historically, our quarterly operating results have fluctuated. Our future quarterly operating results will likely fluctuate from time to time and may not meet
the expectations of securities analysts and investors in some future period. The price of our common stock could decline due to such fluctuations. The
following factors may cause significant fluctuations in our future quarterly operating results:

• the size and timing of sales volumes achieved by our customers’ products;
 

• the loss of any of our large customers or an adverse change in any of our large customers’ businesses;
 

• the size of improvements in our customers’ yield and the timing of agreement as to those improvements;
 

• our long and variable sales cycle;
 

• changes in the mix of our revenue;
 

• changes in the level of our operating expenses needed to support our projected growth; and
 

• delays in completing solution implementations for our customers.

29



Table of Contents

Our gain share revenue is dependent on factors outside of our control, including the volume of integrated circuits, or ICs, our customers are able to sell to
their customers.

     Our gain share revenue for a particular product is largely determined by the volume of that product our customer is able to sell to its customers, which is
outside of our control. We have limited ability to predict the success or failure of our customers’ IC products. Further, our customers may implement changes
to their manufacturing processes during the gain share period, which could negatively affect yield results, which is beyond our control. We may commit a
significant amount of time and resources to a customer who is ultimately unable to sell as many units as we had anticipated when contracting with them or
who makes unplanned changes to their processes. Since we currently work on a small number of large projects, any product that does not achieve commercial
viability or a significant increase in yield could significantly reduce our revenue and results of operations below expectations. In addition, if we work with
two directly competitive products, volume in one may offset volume, and any of our related gain share, in the other product. Further, decreased demand for
semiconductor products decreases the volume of products our customers are able to sell, which may adversely affect our gain share revenue.

Gain share measurement requires data collection and is subject to customer agreement, which can result in uncertainty and cause quarterly results to
fluctuate.

     We can only recognize gain share revenue once we have reached agreement with our customers on their level of yield performance improvements. Because
measuring the amount of yield improvement is inherently complicated and dependent on our customers’ internal information systems, there may be
uncertainty as to some components of measurement. This could result in our recognition of less revenue than expected. In addition, any delay in measuring
gain share could cause all of the associated revenue to be delayed until the next quarter. Since we rely on gain share as a significant component of our total
revenue, any delay could significantly harm our quarterly results.

Changes in the structure of our customer contracts, including the mix between fixed and variable revenue and the mix of elements, can adversely affect the
size and timing of our total revenue.

     Our long-term success is largely dependent upon our ability to structure our future customer contracts to include a larger gain share component relative to
the fixed fee component. If we are successful in increasing the gain share component of our customer contracts, we will experience an adverse impact on our
operating results in the short term as we reduce the fixed fee component, which we typically recognize earlier than gain share fees. Due to acquisitions and
expanded business strategies, the mix of elements in some of our contracts has changed recently and the relative importance of the software component in
some of our contracts has increased. We have experienced, and may in the future experience, delays in the expected recognition of revenue associated with
generally accepted accounting principles regarding the timing of revenue recognition in multi-element software arrangements, including the effect of
acceptance criteria. If we fail to meet contractual acceptance criteria on time or at all, the total revenue we receive under a contract could be delayed or
decline. In addition, by increasing the gain share or the software component, we may increase the variability or timing of recognition of our revenue, and
therefore increase the risk that our total future revenue will be lower than expected and fluctuate significantly from period to period.
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We generate a large percentage of our total revenue from a limited number of customers, so the loss of any one of these customers could significantly
reduce our revenue and results of operations below expectations.

     Historically, we have had a small number of large customers for our core Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions and we expect this to continue in the near term.
In the nine months ended September 30, 2004, four customers accounted for 56% of our total net revenue, with Toshiba representing 19%, Matsushita
representing 13%, Texas Instruments representing 13% and Sony representing 11%, respectively. For the year ending December 31, 2003, Toshiba,
Matsushita, Texas Instruments and Sony represented 25%, 13%, 8% and 15% respectively. The loss of any of these customers or a decrease in the sales
volumes of their products could significantly reduce our total revenue below expectations. In particular, such a loss could cause significant fluctuations in
results of operations because our expenses are fixed in the short term and it takes us a long time to replace customers.

It typically takes us a long time to sell our unique solutions to new customers, which can result in uncertainty and delays in generating additional revenue.

     Because our gain share business model is unique and our Design-to-Silicon-Yield solutions are unfamiliar, our sales cycle is lengthy and requires a
significant amount of our senior management’s time and effort. Furthermore, we need to target those individuals within a customer’s organization who have
overall responsibility for the profitability of an IC. These individuals tend to be senior management or executive officers. We may face difficulty identifying
and establishing contact with such individuals. Even after initial acceptance, due to the complexity of structuring the gain share component, the negotiation
and documentation processes can be lengthy. It can take nine months or more to reach a signed contract with a customer. Unexpected delays in our sales
cycle could cause our revenue to fall short of expectations.

We have a history of losses, we may incur losses in the future and we may be unable to achieve or subsequently maintain profitability.

     While we were profitable in our most recent quarter we have experienced losses in the nine quarters prior to the most recent quarter. We may not be able to
maintain profitability if our revenue increases more slowly than we expect or not at all. In addition, virtually all of our operating expenses are fixed in the
short term, so any shortfall in anticipated revenue in a given period could significantly reduce our operating results below expectations. Our accumulated
deficit was $21.5 million as of September 30, 2004. We expect to continue to incur significant expenses in connection with:

• funding for research and development;
 

• expansion of our solution implementation teams;
 

• expansion of our sales and marketing efforts; and
 

• additional non-cash charges relating to amortization of intangibles and deferred stock compensation.

     As a result, we will need to significantly increase revenue to achieve and subsequently maintain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis. Any of these
factors could cause our stock price to decline.
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The semiconductor industry is cyclical in nature.

     Our revenue is highly dependent upon the overall condition of the semiconductor industry, especially in light of our gain share revenue component. The
semiconductor industry is highly cyclical and subject to rapid technological change and has been subject to significant economic downturns at various
times, characterized by diminished product demand, accelerated erosion of average selling prices and production overcapacity. One such downturn
commenced during the third quarter of calendar 2000, with no significant upturn to date. The semiconductor industry also periodically experiences increased
demand and production capacity constraints. As a result, we may experience significant fluctuations in operating results due to general semiconductor
industry conditions and overall economic conditions.

We must continually attract and retain highly talented executives, engineers and research and development personnel or we will be unable to expand our
business as planned.

     We will need to continue to hire highly talented executives, engineers and research and development personnel to support our planned growth. We have
experienced, and we expect to continue to experience, delays and limitations in hiring and retaining highly skilled individuals with appropriate
qualifications. We intend to continue to hire foreign nationals, particularly as we expand our operations internationally. We have had, and expect to continue
to have, difficulty in obtaining visas permitting entry into the United States for several of our key personnel, which disrupts our ability to strategically locate
our personnel. If we lose the services of any of our key executives or a significant number of our engineers, it could disrupt our ability to implement our
business strategy. Competition for executives and qualified engineers can be intense, especially in Silicon Valley where we are principally based.

If our products, technologies, services and integrated solutions fail to keep pace with the rapid technological changes in the semiconductor industry, we
could lose customers and revenue.

     We must continually devote significant engineering resources to enable us to keep up with the rapidly evolving technologies and equipment used in the
semiconductor design and manufacturing processes. These innovations are inherently complex and require long development cycles. Not only do we need
the technical expertise to implement the changes necessary to keep our technologies current, we also rely heavily on the judgment of our advisors and
management to anticipate future market trends. Our customers expect us to stay ahead of the technology curve and expect that our products, technologies,
services and integrated solutions will support any new design or manufacturing processes or materials as soon as they are deployed. If we are not able to
timely predict industry changes, or if we are unable to modify our products, technologies, services and integrated solutions on a timely basis, our existing
solutions will be rendered obsolete and we may lose customers. If we do not keep pace with technology, our existing and potential customers may choose to
develop their own solutions internally as an alternative to ours and we could lose market share, which could adversely affect our operating results.

We intend to pursue additional strategic relationships, which are necessary to maximize our growth, but could substantially divert management attention
and resources.

     In order to establish and maintain strategic relationships with industry leaders at each stage of the IC design and manufacturing processes, we may need to
expend significant resources and will need to commit a significant amount of management’s time and attention, with no guarantee of success. If we are unable
to enter into strategic relationships with these companies, we will not be as effective at modeling existing technologies or at keeping ahead of
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the technology curve as new technologies are introduced. In the past, the absence of an established working relationship with key companies in the industry
has meant that we have had to exclude the effect of their component parts from our modeling analysis, which reduces the overall effectiveness of our analysis
and limits our ability to improve yield. We may be unable to establish key industry strategic relationships if any of the following occur:

• potential industry partners become concerned about our ability to protect their intellectual property;
 

• potential industry partners develop their own solutions to address the need for yield improvement;
 

• our potential competitors establish relationships with industry partners with which we seek to establish a relationship; or
 

• potential industry partners attempt to restrict our ability to enter into relationships with their competitors.

Recent acquisitions may adversely affect our business by diverting management’s attention, increasing our expenses or by being more difficult to integrate
than expected.

     During 2003, we completed our acquisitions of WaferYield and IDS. Our success in realizing the strategic benefits and growth opportunities to be gained
from incorporating the operations of WaferYield and IDS into PDF and the timing of this realization depend upon our successful integration of WaferYield
and IDS. The integration of WaferYield and IDS is a complex, costly and time-consuming process. The difficulties of combining our operations associated
with these acquisitions include:

• consolidating research and development operations;
 

• retaining key employees;
 

• incorporating acquired products and business technology into our existing product lines;
 

• coordinating effective sales and marketing functions;
 

• preserving research and development, marketing, customer and other important relationships; and
 

• minimizing the diversion of management’s attention from ongoing business concerns.

Our operating results could be adversely affected as a result of purchase accounting treatment and the impact of amortization and impairment of
intangible assets relating to business combinations.

     In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, we accounted for our acquisitions of IDS and WaferYield using the purchase method of
accounting. Under the purchase method of accounting, we have allocated the cost of the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including various
identifiable intangible assets (such as core technology) and in-process research and development, based on their respective fair values at the date of the
completion of the business combinations. Intangible assets are required to be amortized prospectively over their estimated useful lives. Any excess of the
purchase price over those fair market values will be accounted for as goodwill. We are not required to amortize goodwill against income but will be subject to
periodic reviews for impairment. If we are required to record impairment charges, the charge will negatively impact reported earnings in the period of the
charge.
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We may not be able to expand our proprietary technologies if we do not consummate potential acquisitions or investments or successfully integrate them
with our business.

     To expand our proprietary technologies, we may acquire or make investments in complementary businesses, technologies or products if appropriate
opportunities arise. We may be unable to identify suitable acquisition or investment candidates at reasonable prices or on reasonable terms, or consummate
future acquisitions or investments, each of which could slow our growth strategy. We may have difficulty integrating the acquired products, personnel or
technologies of any acquisitions we might make. These difficulties could disrupt our ongoing business, distract our management and employees and increase
our expenses.

Competition in the market for solutions that address yield improvement and integration between IC design and manufacturing may intensify in the future,
which could slow our ability to grow or execute our strategy.

     Competition in our market may intensify in the future, which could slow our ability to grow or execute our strategy. Our current and potential customers
may choose to develop their own solutions internally, particularly if we are slow in deploying our solutions. Many of these companies have the financial and
technical capability to develop their own solutions. Also, competitors could establish non-domestic operations with a lower cost structure than our
engineering organization, which would give any such competitor’s products a competitive advantage over our solutions. There may be other providers of
commercial solutions for systematic IC yield and performance enhancement of which we are not aware. We currently face indirect competition from the
internal groups at IC companies. Some providers of yield management software or inspection equipment may seek to broaden their product offerings and
compete with us. For example, KLA-Tencor has announced adding the use of test structures to one of their inspection product lines. Other companies, such as
HPL Technologies which, through its acquisition of Test Chip Technologies, has indicated its intent to further utilize test chips in its product offering, may
in the future seek to directly enter our market. In addition, we believe that the demand for solutions that address the need for better integration between the
silicon design and manufacturing processes may encourage direct competitors to enter into our market. For example, large integrated organizations, such as
IDMs, electronic design automation software providers, IC design service companies or semiconductor equipment vendors, may decide to spin-off a business
unit that competes with us. Other potential competitors include fabrication facilities that may decide to offer solutions competitive with ours as part of their
value proposition to their customers. If these potential competitors are able to attract industry partners or customers faster than we can, we may not be able to
grow and execute our strategy as quickly or at all. In addition, customer preferences may shift away from our solutions as a result of the increase in
competition.

We face operational and financial risks associated with international operations.

     We derive a majority of our revenue from international sales, principally from customers based in Asia. Revenue generated from customers in Asia
accounted for 64% of total revenue in the nine months ended September 30, 2004. During the year ended December 31, 2003 revenue generated from
customers in Asia was 70%. We expect that a significant portion of our total future revenue will continue to be derived from companies based in Asia. We are
subject to risks inherent in doing business in international markets. These risks include:

• some of our key engineers and other personnel who are foreign nationals may have difficulty gaining access to the United States and other countries in
which our customers or our offices may be located;

 
• greater difficulty in collecting account receivables resulting in longer collection periods;
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• language and other cultural differences may inhibit our sales and marketing efforts and create internal communication problems among our U.S. and
foreign research and development teams;

 
• compliance with, and unexpected changes in, a wide variety of foreign laws and regulatory environments with which we are not familiar;

 
• currency risk due to the fact that expenses for our international offices are denominated in the local currency, including the Euro, while virtually all of

our revenue is denominated in U.S. dollars;
 

• in the event a larger portion of our revenue becomes denominated in foreign currencies, we would be subject to a potentially significant exchange rate
risk; and

 
• economic or political instability.

 
• In Japan, in particular, we face the following additional risks:

 
• any recurrence of an overall downturn in Asian economies could limit our ability to retain existing customers and attract new ones in Asia;

 
• if the U.S. dollar increases in value relative to the Japanese Yen, the cost of our solutions will be more expensive to existing and potential Japanese

customers and therefore less competitive; and
 

• if any of these risks materialize, we may be unable to continue to market our solutions successfully in international markets.

We must effectively manage and support our operations and recent and planned growth in order for our business strategy to succeed.

     We will need to continue to grow in all areas of operation and successfully integrate and support our existing and new employees into our operations, or
we may be unable to implement our business strategy in the time frame we anticipate, if at all. We have in the past, and may in the future, experience
interruptions in our information systems. Further, physical damage to, failure of, or digital damage (such as significant viruses or worms) to, our information
systems could delay time-sensitive services or computing operations that we perform for our customers, which could negatively impact our business results
and reputation. We may need to switch to a new accounting system in the near future, which could disrupt our business operations and distract management.
In addition, we will need to expand our intranet to support new data centers to enhance our research and development efforts. Our intranet is expensive to
expand and must be highly secure due to the sensitive nature of our customers’ information that we transmit. Building and managing the support necessary
for our growth places significant demands on our management and resources. These demands may divert these resources from the continued growth of our
business and implementation of our business strategy. Further, we must adequately train our new personnel, especially our client service and technical
support personnel, to adequately, and accurately, respond to and support our customers. If we fail to do this, it could lead to dissatisfaction among our
customers, which could slow our growth.

Our solution implementations may take longer than we anticipate, which could cause us to lose customers and may result in adjustments to our operating
results.

     Our solution implementations require a team of engineers to collaborate with our customers to address complex yield loss issues by using our software and
other technologies. We must estimate the amount of time needed to complete an existing solution implementation in order to estimate when the engineers
will be able to commence a new solution implementation.
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Given the time pressures involved in bringing IC products to market, targeted customers may proceed without us if we are not able to commence their
solution implementation on time.

     In addition, our accounting for solution implementation contracts, which generate fixed fees, sometimes require adjustments to profit and loss based on
revised estimates during the performance of the contract. These adjustments may have a material effect on our results of operations in the period in which
they are made. The estimates giving rise to these risks, which are inherent in fixed-price contracts, include the forecasting of costs and schedules, and contract
revenues related to contract performance.

Key executives, including our chief executive officer and our chief strategy officer, are critical to our business and we cannot guarantee that they will
remain with us indefinitely.

     Our future success will depend to a significant extent on the continued services of our key executives, including John Kibarian, our President and Chief
Executive Officer, and David Joseph, our Chief Strategy Officer. If we lose the services of any of our key executives, it could slow execution of our business
plan, hinder our product development processes and impair our sales efforts. Searching for replacements could divert other senior management’s time and
increase our operating expenses. In addition, our industry partners and customers could become concerned about our future operations, which could injure
our reputation. We do not have long-term employment agreements with our executives and we do not maintain any key person life insurance policies on their
lives.

Inadvertent disclosure of our customers’ confidential information could result in costly litigation and cause us to lose existing and potential customers.

     Our customers consider their product yield information and other confidential information, which we must gather in the course of our engagement with the
customer, to be extremely competitively sensitive. If we inadvertently disclosed or were required to disclose this information, we would likely lose existing
and potential customers, and could be subject to costly litigation. In addition, to avoid potential disclosure of confidential information to competitors, some
of our customers may, in the future, ask us not to work with key competitive products.

If we fail to protect our intellectual property rights, customers or potential competitors may be able to use our technologies to develop their own solutions
which could weaken our competitive position, reduce our revenue or increase our costs.

     Our success depends largely on the proprietary nature of our technologies. We currently rely primarily on copyright, trademark and trade secret protection.
Whether or not patents are granted to us, litigation may be necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights or to determine the validity and scope of the
proprietary rights of others. As a result of any such litigation, we could lose our proprietary rights and incur substantial unexpected operating costs.
Litigation could also divert our resources, including our managerial and engineering resources. In the future, we intend to rely primarily on a combination of
patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secrets to protect our proprietary rights and prevent competitors from using our proprietary technologies in their
products. These laws and procedures provide only limited protection. Our pending patent applications may not result in issued patents, and even if issued,
they may not be sufficiently broad to protect our proprietary technologies. Also, patent protection in foreign countries may be limited or unavailable where
we need such protection.
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Our technologies could infringe the intellectual property rights of others causing costly litigation and the loss of significant rights.

     Significant litigation regarding intellectual property rights exists in the semiconductor industry. It is possible that a third party may claim that our
technologies infringe their intellectual property rights or misappropriate their trade secrets. Any claim, even if without merit, could be time consuming to
defend, result in costly litigation or require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. A
successful claim of infringement against us in connection with the use of our technologies could adversely affect our business.

Defects in our proprietary technologies, hardware and software tools and the cost of support to remedy any such defects could decrease our revenue and
our competitive market share.

     If the software, hardware or proprietary technologies we provide to a customer contain defects that increase our customer’s cost of goods sold and time to
market, these defects could significantly decrease the market acceptance of our solutions. Further, the cost of support resources required to remedy any
defects in our technologies, hardware or software tools could exceed our expectations. Any actual or perceived defects with our software, hardware or
proprietary technologies may also hinder our ability to attract or retain industry partners or customers, leading to a decrease in our revenue. These defects are
frequently found during the period following introduction of new software, hardware or proprietary technologies or enhancements to existing software,
hardware or proprietary technologies. Our software, hardware or proprietary technologies may contain errors not discovered until after customer
implementation of the silicon design and manufacturing process recommended by us. If our software, hardware or proprietary technologies contain errors or
defects, it could require us to expend significant resources to alleviate these problems, which could reduce margins, and result in the diversion of technical
and other resources from our other development efforts.

Legislative actions, higher insurance cost and potential new accounting pronouncements are likely to cause our general and administrative expenses to
increase and impact our future financial position and results of operations.

     In order to comply with the newly adopted Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as proposed changes to listing standards by Nasdaq, and proposed
accounting changes by the Securities and Exchange Commission, we may be required to increase our internal controls, hire additional personnel and
additional outside legal, accounting and advisory services, all of which will cause our general and administrative costs to increase. Insurers are also likely to
increase premiums as a result of the high claims rates incurred over the past year, and so our premiums for our various insurance policies, including our
directors’ and officers’ insurance policies, are likely to increase. Proposed changes in the accounting rules, including legislative and other proposals to
account for employee stock options as a compensation expense among others, could materially increase the expenses that we report under generally accepted
accounting principles and adversely affect our operating results.

We may have difficulty implementing in a timely manner the processes necessary to allow us to assess and report on the effectiveness of our internal
financial controls under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

     Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, we will be required to furnish a report on our management’s assessment of the design and effectiveness
of our system of internal controls over financial reporting as part of our Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning with the fiscal year ending December 31,
2004. Our auditors will also be required to attest to, and report on, our management’s assessment. In order to issue their report, our management must
document both the design of our system of internal controls and our testing processes that support our management’s evaluation and conclusion. Our
management has started documenting the system design and implementation of the processes necessary to issue its report. During the course of testing, we
may identify deficiencies, including those arising from turnover of qualified personnel, which we may not be able to remediate in time to meet the reporting
deadline imposed by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the costs of which may have a material adverse impact of our results of operations. In
addition, if we fail to maintain the adequacy of our internal controls, as such standards are modified, supplemented or amended from time to time, we may not
be able to ensure that our management can conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal controls and we may not be able to retain
independent auditors with sufficient resources to attest to and report on our internal controls. Moreover, our auditors may not agree with our management’s
assessment and may send us a deficiency notice that we are unable to remediate on a timely basis. If we are unable to assert as of December 31, 2004 that we
have an effective internal controls, our investors could lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness in our financial reports which in turn could cause
our stock price to decline.
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Change in stock option accounting rules may adversely impact our reported operating results prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, our stock price and our competitiveness in the employee marketplace.

     Technology companies in general and PDF in particular have a history of depending upon and using broad based employee stock option programs to hire,
incentivize and retain employees in a competitive marketplace. Any changes in accounting or income tax rules which would require us to record
compensation expense in the statement of operations for employee stock options using the fair value method or changes in existing taxation rules related to
stock options would have a significant negative effect on our reported results. Several agencies and entities are considering, and the Financial Accounting
Standards Board has announced, proposals to change generally accepted accounting principles in the United States that, if implemented, would require us to
record charges to compensation expense for employee stock option grants. Such a change would result in lower reported earnings per share, which may
negatively impact our future stock price. In addition, such a change could impact our ability to utilize broad based employee stock plans to reward
employees and could result in a competitive disadvantage to us in the employee marketplace.

Worldwide events may reduce our revenues and harm our business.

     Future political or related events similar or comparable to the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks, or significant military conflicts or long-term reactions
of governments and society to such events, may cause significant delays or reductions in technology purchases or limit our ability to travel to certain parts of
the world. In addition, such events have had and may continue to have negative effects on financial markets, including significant price and volume
fluctuations in securities markets. If such events continue or escalate, our business and results of operations could be harmed and the market price of our
common stock could decline.
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We may not be able to raise necessary funds to support our growth or execute our strategy.

     We currently anticipate that our available cash resources will be sufficient to meet our presently anticipated working capital and capital expenditure
requirements for at least the next 12 months. However, unanticipated efforts to support more rapid expansion, develop or enhance Design-to-Silicon-Yield
solutions, respond to competitive pressures or acquire complementary businesses or technologies could impact our future capital requirements and the
adequacy of our available funds. In such event, we may need to raise additional funds through public or private financings, strategic relationships or other
arrangements. We may not be able to raise any necessary funds on terms favorable to us, or at all.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

     The following discusses our exposure to market risk related to changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. We do not currently own any
equity investments, nor do we expect to own any in the foreseeable future. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results could vary materially as a result of a number of factors.

     Interest Rate Risk. As of September 30, 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of $42.9 million, consisting of cash and highly liquid money market
instruments with maturities of 90 days or less. Because of the short maturities of those instruments, a sudden change in market interest rates would not have a
material impact on the fair value of the portfolio. We would not expect our operating results or cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by the
effect of a sudden change in market interest on our portfolio. A hypothetical increase in market interest rates of 10% from the market rates in effect at
September 30, 2004 would cause the fair value of these investments to decrease by an immaterial amount which would not have significantly impacted our
financial position or results of operations. Declines in interest rates over time will result in lower interest income and increased interest expense.

     Foreign Currency and Exchange Risk. Virtually all of our revenue is denominated in U.S. dollars, although such revenue is derived substantially from
foreign customers. Foreign sales to date, generated by our German subsidiary PDF Solutions GmbH since the date of its acquisition, have for the most part,
been invoiced in local currencies, creating receivables denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The risk due to foreign currency fluctuations
associated with these receivables is partially reduced by local payables denominated in the same currencies, and presently we do not consider it necessary to
hedge these exposures. We intend to monitor our foreign currency exposure. There can be no assurance that exchange rate fluctuations will not have a
materially negative impact on our business.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

     (a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of
our “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”)) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective
and designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file and submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the timeframes specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.
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     (b) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting. There were no material changes in our internal controls or to our knowledge, in other factors
that could materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during the period
covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

     Not Applicable.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

     (b) Use of Proceeds. Our first registration statement, filed on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-43192) related to our initial public offering was declared
effective by the SEC on July 26, 2001. There has been no change to the disclosure contained in our report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003, as amended, with respect to the use of proceeds generated by our initial public offering.

     (c) Stock Repurchases. The table below sets forth the information with respect to purchases made by or on behalf of the Company or any “affiliated
purchaser” (as the term is defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) of our common stock during the nine months ended
September 30, 2004:

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

                 
              (d) Maximum Number
              (or Approximate
          (c) Total Number of  Dollar Value) of
          Shares (or Units)  Shares (or Units)
          Purchased as Part  that May Yet Be
  (a) Total Number of  (b) Average Price  of Publicly  Purchased Under the
  Shares (or Units)  Paid Per Share (or  Announced Plans or  Plans or
Period

 
Purchased(1)

 
Unit)

 
Programs (1)(2)

 
Programs(1)(2)

Month #1 (July 1, 2004 through July
31, 2004)   —   —   —  $ 7,058,019 

Month #2 (August 1, 2004 through
August 31, 2004)   198,279  $ 9.40   198,279  $ 5,193,678 

Month #3 (September 1, 2004 through
September 30, 2004)   —   —   —  $ 5,193,678 

   198,279  $ 9.40   198,279     

(1) As of the quarter ended June 30, 2004, 307,300 shares had been purchased under this program at an average per share price of $9.58 and approximately
$7.0 million remained available for repurchases.

 
(2) On March 26, 2003, we announced that our Board of Directors had approved a share repurchase program, pursuant to which up to $10.0 million of our

outstanding common stock may be repurchased; the repurchase program has no set expiration or termination date. As of September 30, 2004, 505,579
shares had been repurchased under this program at an average per share price of $9.51 and approximately $5.2 million remained available for
repurchases.

Item 3. Defaults on Senior Securities

     Not Applicable.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

     Not Applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

     Not Applicable.
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Item 6. Exhibits

     (a)Exhibits:

   
Exhibit   
Number

 
Description

3.1  Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PDF Solutions, Inc.**
   
3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws of PDF Solutions, Inc.**
   
4.1  Specimen Stock Certificate**
   
4.2  Second Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated July 6, 2001*
   
31.01  Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
   
31.02

 
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance and Administration pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

   
32.01

 
Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002***

   
32.02

 
Certification the Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance and Administration pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002***

   
*  Incorporated by reference to PDF’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Amendment No. 7 filed July 9, 2001 (File No. 333-43192).
   
**  Incorporated by reference to PDF’s Report on Form 10-Q filed September 6, 2001 (File No. 000-31311).
   
***

 

As contemplated by SEC Release No. 33-8212, these exhibits are furnished with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and are not deemed filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and are not incorporated by reference in any filing of PDF Solutions, Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933 or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any filings.
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SIGNATURES

     Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

     
Date: November 9, 2004  By: /s/ John K. Kibarian

   John K. Kibarian
   President and Chief Executive Officer

     
 By: /s/ P. Steven Melman
   P. Steven Melman
   Chief Financial Officer and Vice President,
   Finance and Administration
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EXHIBIT INDEX

   
Exhibit   
Number

 
Description

3.1  Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PDF Solutions, Inc.**
   
3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws of PDF Solutions, Inc.**
   
4.1  Specimen Stock Certificate**
   
4.2  Second Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated July 6, 2001*
   
31.01  Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
   
31.02

 
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance and Administration pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

   
32.01

 
Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002***

   
32.02

 
Certification the Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance and Administration pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002***

   
*  Incorporated by reference to PDF’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Amendment No. 7 filed July 9, 2001 (File No. 333-43192).
   
**  Incorporated by reference to PDF’s Report on Form 10-Q filed September 6, 2001 (File No. 000-31311).
   
***

 

As contemplated by SEC Release No. 33-8212, these exhibits are furnished with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and are not deemed filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and are not incorporated by reference in any filing of PDF Solutions, Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933 or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any filings.



                                                                   EXHIBIT 31.01

                                 CERTIFICATIONS

      I, John K. Kibarian, certify that:

      1.    I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PDF Solutions,
Inc.;

      2.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the periods covered by this report;

      3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

      4.    The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

         a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
      disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
      to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
      its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
      entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
      prepared;

         b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls
      and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
      effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
      the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

         c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal
      control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
      most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the
      case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
      likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over
      financial reporting; and

      5.    The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

         a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design
      or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
      reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record,
      process, summarize and report financial information; and

         b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
      other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
      control over financial reporting.

                                               /s/ JOHN K. KIBARIAN
                                     -------------------------------------------
                                                   John K. Kibarian
                                        President and Chief Executive Officer
                                            (Principal Executive Officer)

Date:  November 9, 2004



                                                                   EXHIBIT 31.02

                                 CERTIFICATIONS

      I, P. Steven Melman, certify that:

      1.    I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PDF Solutions,
Inc.;

      2.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

      3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

      4.    The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

         a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
      disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
      to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
      its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
      entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
      prepared;

         b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls
      and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
      effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
      the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

         c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal
      control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
      most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the
      case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
      likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over
      financial reporting; and

      5.    The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

         a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design
      or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
      reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record,
      process, summarize and report financial information; and

         b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
      other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
      control over financial reporting.

                                              /s/ P. STEVEN MELMAN
                                ------------------------------------------------
                                                  P. Steven Melman
                                  Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
                                         of Finance and Administration
                                         (Principal Financial Officer)

Date: November 9, 2004



                                                                   EXHIBIT 32.01

                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

      In connection with the Quarterly Report of PDF Solutions, Inc. (the
"Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2004 (the "Report"), I,
John K. Kibarian, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

      (1)   The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

      (2)   The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

                                              /s/ JOHN K. KIBARIAN
                                   -------------------------------------------
                                                John K. Kibarian
                                     President and Chief Executive Officer
                                          (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: November 9, 2004



                                                                   EXHIBIT 32.02

                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

      In connection with the Quarterly Report of PDF Solutions, Inc. (the
"Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2004 (the "Report"), I, P.
Steven Melman, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance and
Administration of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my
knowledge:

      (1)   The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

      (2)   The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

                                            /s/ P. STEVEN MELMAN
                              --------------------------------------------------
                                               P. Steven Melman
                                  Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
                                          of Finance and Administration
                                          (Principal Financial Officer)

Date: November 9, 2004
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